

1 231.03 (18) Make studies of needed health facilities and educational
2 facilities that could not sustain a loan were it made under this chapter and
3 recommend remedial action to the legislature; and do the same with regard to
4 any laws or rules that prevent health facilities and educational facilities
5 from benefiting from this chapter.

6 ••87b0113/2••SECTION 1962L. 231.03 (19) of the statutes is amended to
7 read:

8 231.03 (19) Obtain, or aid in obtaining, from any department or agency of
9 the United States or of this state or any private company, any insurance or
10 guaranty concerning the payment or repayment of, interest or principal, or
11 both, or any part thereof, on any loan, lease or obligation or any instrument
12 evidencing or securing the same, made or entered into under the provisions of
13 this chapter; and notwithstanding any other provisions of this chapter, to
14 enter into any agreement, contract or any other instrument with respect to
15 that insurance or guaranty, to accept payment in the manner and form provided
16 therein in the event of default by a participating health institution or
17 participating educational institution, and to assign the insurance or guaranty
18 as security for the authority's bonds.

19 ••87b0113/2••SECTION 1962m. 231.04 of the statutes is amended to read:

20 231.04 EXPENSES. All expenses of the authority incurred in carrying out
21 this chapter shall be payable solely from funds provided under the authority
22 of this chapter, and no liability may be incurred by the authority beyond the
23 extent to which moneys have been provided under this chapter except that, for
24 the purposes of meeting the necessary expenses of initial organization and
25 operation of the authority for the period commencing on June 19, 1974 and
26 continuing until such date as the authority derives moneys from funds provided
27 to it under the authority of this chapter, the authority may borrow such
28 moneys as it requires to supplement the funds provided under s. 20.440. Such

1 moneys borrowed by the authority shall subsequently be charged to and appor-
2 tioned among participating health facilities and participating educational
3 facilities in an equitable manner, and repaid with appropriate interest over a
4 reasonable period of time.

5 ••87b0113/2••SECTION 1962n. 231.05 (1) of the statutes is amended to
6 read:

7 231.05 (1) By means of this chapter, it is the intent of the legislature
8 to provide assistance and alternative methods of financing to nonprofit health
9 institutions to aid them in providing needed health services consistent with
10 the state's health plan and to nonprofit educational institutions to aid them
11 in providing needed educational services.

12 ••87b0113/2••SECTION 1962o. 231.05 (3) of the statutes is amended to
13 read:

14 231.05 (3) The With respect to an applicant requesting financing for
15 health services, the authority shall, at the same time as it notifies the
16 applicant of its action, notify the state health planning and development
17 agency of its action, including data in support of its decision.

18 ••87b0113/2••SECTION 1962p. 231.06 of the statutes is amended to read:

19 231.06 PROPERTY ACQUISITION. The authority may acquire, directly or by
20 and through a participating health institution or participating educational
21 institution as its agent, by purchase or by gift or devise, such lands,
22 structures, property, rights, rights-of-way, franchises, easements and other
23 interests in lands, including lands lying under water and riparian rights,
24 which are located within this state as it deems necessary or convenient for
25 the construction or operation of a project, upon such terms and at such prices
26 as it considers reasonable and can be agreed upon between it and the owner
27 thereof, and take title thereto in the name of the authority or in the name of
28 a participating health facility or educational facility as its agent.

1 ••87b0113/2••SECTION 1962q. 231.07 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to
2 read:

3 231.07 (1) (b) Convey to the participating health institution or parti-
4 cipating educational institution the authority's interest in the project and
5 in any other health facility or educational facility leased, mortgaged or
6 subject to a deed of trust or any other form of security arrangement to secure
7 the bond.

8 ••87b0113/2••SECTION 1962r. 231.07 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to
9 read:

10 231.07 (2) (a) The principal of and interest on any bond issued by the
11 authority to finance a project or to refinance or refund outstanding
12 indebtedness of one or more participating health institutions or participating
13 educational institutions, including any refunding bonds issued to refund and
14 refinance the bond, have been fully paid and the bonds retired or if the ade-
15 quate provision has been made to pay fully and retire the bond; and

16 ••87b0113/2••SECTION 1962s. 231.08 (5) of the statutes is amended to
17 read:

18 231.08 (5) In addition to the other authorizations under this section,
19 bonds of the authority may be secured by a pooling of leases whereby the
20 authority may assign its rights, as lessor, and pledge rents under 2 or more
21 leases of health facilities or educational facilities with 2 or more health
22 institutions or educational institutions, as lessees respectively, upon such
23 terms as may be provided for in bond resolutions of the authority.

24 ••87b0113/2••SECTION 1962t. 231.10 (1) of the statutes is amended to
25 read:

26 231.10 (1) The state is not liable on notes or bonds of the authority and
27 the notes and bonds are not a debt of the state. All notes and bonds of the
28 authority shall contain on the face thereof a statement to this effect. The

1 issuance of bonds under this chapter shall not, directly or indirectly or
2 contingently, obligate the state or any political subdivision thereof to levy
3 any form of taxation therefor or to make any appropriation for their payment.
4 Nothing in this section prevents the authority from pledging its full faith
5 and credit or the full faith and credit of a health institution or educational
6 institution to the payment of bonds authorized under this chapter.

7 ••87b0113/2••SECTION 1962u. 231.12 of the statutes is amended to read:

8 231.12 STUDIES AND RECOMMENDATIONS. It is the intent and purpose of this
9 chapter that the exercise by the authority of the powers granted to it shall
10 be in all respects for the benefit of the people of this state to assist them
11 to provide needed health facilities and educational facilities of the number,
12 size, type, distribution and operation that will assure admission and health
13 care or education of high quality to all who need it. ~~To this end, the~~ The
14 authority shall identify and study all projects which are determined by health
15 planning agencies to be needed, but which could not sustain a loan were such
16 to be made to it under this chapter. The authority shall, ~~following such~~
17 ~~study,~~ formulate and recommend to the legislature such amendments to this and
18 other laws, and such other specific measures as grants, loan guarantees,
19 interest subsidies or other actions the state may provide which would render
20 the construction and operation of ~~such needed health facility~~ facilities and
21 educational facilities feasible and in the public interest. The authority also
22 shall identify and study any laws or rules which it finds handicaps or bars a
23 needed health facility or educational facility from participating in the
24 benefits of this chapter, and recommend to the legislature such actions as
25 will remedy such situation.

26 ••87b0113/2••SECTION 1962v. 231.13 (1) (intro.) of the statutes is
27 amended to read:

1 231.13 (1) (intro.) The authority shall collect rents for the use of, or
2 other revenues relating to the financing of, each project. The authority
3 shall contract with a participating health institution or participating
4 educational institution for each issuance of bonds. The contract shall pro-
5 vide that the rents or other revenues payable by the health facility or
6 educational facility shall be sufficient at all times to:

7 ••87b0113/2••SECTION 1962w. 231.13 (2) of the statutes is amended to
8 read:

9 231.13 (2) The authority shall pledge the revenues derived and to be
10 derived from a project and other related health facilities or educational
11 facilities for the purposes specified in sub. (1), and additional bonds may be
12 issued which may rank on a parity with other bonds relating to the project to
13 the extent and on the terms and conditions provided in the bond resolution.
14 Such pledge shall be valid and binding from the time when the pledge is made,
15 the revenues so pledged by the authority shall immediately be subject to the
16 lien of such pledge without any physical delivery thereof or further act and
17 the lien of any such pledge shall be valid and binding as against all parties
18 having claims of any kind in tort, contract or otherwise against the
19 authority, irrespective of whether such parties have notice thereof. Neither
20 the bond resolution nor any financing statement, continuation statement or
21 other instrument by which a pledge is created or by which the authority's
22 interest in revenues is assigned need be filed or recorded in any public
23 records in order to perfect the lien thereof as against 3rd parties, except
24 that a copy thereof shall be filed in the records of the authority and with
25 the secretary of state.

26 ••87b0113/2••SECTION 1962x. 231.16 (1) of the statutes is amended to
27 read:

1 231.16 (1) The authority may issue bonds to refund any outstanding bond
2 of the authority or indebtedness that a participating health institution or
3 participating educational institution may have incurred for the construction
4 or acquisition of a project prior to or after April 30, 1980, including the
5 payment of any redemption premium on the outstanding bond or indebtedness and
6 any interest accrued or to accrue to the earliest or any subsequent date of
7 redemption, purchase or maturity, or to pay all or any part of the cost of
8 constructing and acquiring additions, improvements, extensions or enlargements
9 of a project or any portion of a project. No bonds may be issued under this
10 section unless the authority has first entered into a new or amended agreement
11 with a participating health institution or participating educational insti-
12 tution to provide sufficient revenues to pay the costs and other items de-
13 scribed in s. 231.13.

14 ••87b0113/2••SECTION 1962y. 231.20 of the statutes is amended to read:

15 231.20 WAIVER OF CONSTRUCTION AND BIDDING REQUIREMENTS. In exercising
16 its powers under s. 101.12, the department of industry, labor and human rela-
17 tions or any city, village, town or county may, within its discretion for
18 proper cause shown, waive any particular requirements relating to public
19 buildings, structures, grounds, works and improvements imposed by law upon
20 projects under this chapter; the requirements of s. 101.13 may not be waived,
21 however. If, however, the prospective lessee so requests in writing, the
22 authority shall, through the participating health institution or participating
23 educational institution as its agent, call for construction bids in such man-
24 ner as is determined by the authority with the approval of the lessee.

25 ••87b0113/2••SECTION 1962z. 231.23 of the statutes is amended to read:

26 231.23 NONPROFIT INSTITUTIONS. It is intended that all nonprofit health
27 and educational institutions in this state be enabled to benefit from and
28 participate in this chapter. To this end, all nonprofit health and educa-

1 tional institutions operating, or authorized to be operated, under any law of
2 this state may undertake projects and utilize the capital financing sources
3 and methods of repayment provided by this chapter, the provisions of any other
4 laws to the contrary notwithstanding.

5 ••87b0474/2••SECTION 1962zg. 231.27 of the statutes is created to read:

6 231.27 MINORITY FINANCIAL INTERESTS. (1) In this section, "minority
7 business", "minority financial adviser" and "minority investment firm" mean a
8 business, financial adviser and investment firm, respectively, certified by
9 the department of development under s. 560.036 (2).

10 (2) The authority shall attempt to ensure that at least 5% of the total
11 amount purchased by the authority from private vendors in each state fiscal
12 year and at least 5% of the total amount contracted and subcontracted under
13 contracts made by the authority to private contractors and subcontractors in
14 each state fiscal year are awarded to vendors, contractors or subcontractors
15 that are minority businesses.

16 (3) In issuing any bonds by competitive sale, the authority shall attempt
17 to ensure that 5% of the total amount of bonds issued in each fiscal year is
18 underwritten by minority investment firms.

19 (4) In issuing bonds by negotiated sale, the authority shall attempt to
20 ensure that 5% of the total amount of bonds issued in each fiscal year is
21 underwritten by minority investment firms.

22 (5) In issuing bonds by competitive sale or negotiated sale, the author-
23 ity shall attempt to ensure that 5% of the total moneys expended in such
24 fiscal year for the services of financial advisers are expended for the ser-
25 vices of minority financial advisers.

26 (6) The authority shall annually report to the department of administra-
27 tion the total amount purchased from and contracted or subcontracted under
28 contracts made by the authority to minority businesses, the total amount of

1 bonds issued by the authority with the underwriting services of minority
2 investment firms and the total amount of moneys expended by the authority for
3 the services of minority financial advisers during the preceding state fiscal
4 year.

5 ••87b0433/2••SECTION 1962zr. 233.02 (7) of the statutes is amended to
6 read:

7 233.02 (7) "Primary employment" means work which pays at least the mini-
8 mum wage as established under ~~ch. 104 or under federal law, whichever is~~
9 ~~greater~~ s. 104.025 (2) (a), offers adequate fringe benefits, including health
10 insurance, and is not seasonal or part time.

11 ••87b1081/2 •• 87b1226/2••SECTION 1962zt. 233.02 (10) of the statutes is
12 amended to read:

13 233.02 (10) "Target group" means a population group for which the unem-
14 ployment level is at least 25% higher than the statewide unemployment level,
15 or a population group for which the average wage received is less than 1.2
16 times the minimum wage as established under ~~ch. 104 or under federal law,~~
17 ~~whichever is greater~~ s. 104.025 (2) (a). No population group is required to
18 be located within a contiguous geographic area to be considered a target
19 group.

20 ••87-2066/6••SECTION 1963. 233.04 (2) (e) of the statutes is amended to
21 read:

22 233.04 (2) (e) In cooperation with the university of Wisconsin small
23 business development center, the university of Wisconsin center for
24 cooperatives, the board of vocational, technical and adult education, the
25 university of Wisconsin-extension, and the department of development ~~and~~ the
26 ~~council on economic adjustment~~, collect and disseminate information regarding
27 employe-owned businesses and promote the appropriate establishment of
28 employe-owned businesses.

1 ••87b0921/2 •• 87b1226/2••SECTION 1963m. 233.09 of the statutes is
2 created to read:

3 233.09 MATCHED FUNDS. The authority may expend any of the amounts
4 appropriated under s. 20.442 (1) (c) in any fiscal year only if the executive
5 director of the authority, or the designee of the executive director, certi-
6 fies to the department of administration that all of the following apply:

7 (1) The authority has raised from the private sector in that fiscal year
8 at least \$150,000 in contributions not subject to s. 233.08.

9 (2) The authority has raised, over and above the amount specified in sub.
10 (1), contributions from the private sector in that fiscal year in an amount at
11 least equal to the amount the authority intends to expend under this section.

12 ••87-1845/1••SECTION 1964. 234.01 (4n) (c) of the statutes is created to
13 read:

14 234.01 (4n) (c) Equipment, materials or labor used to make an
15 energy-conserving improvement to a commercial or industrial facility.

16 ••87-2066/6••SECTION 1965. 234.03 (29) of the statutes is repealed.

17 ••87b0557/1 •• 87b1226/2••SECTION 1965e. 234.04 (2) of the statutes is
18 amended to read:

19 234.04 (2) The authority may make or participate in the making and enter
20 into commitments for the making of long-term mortgage loans to eligible spon-
21 sors of housing projects for occupancy by persons and families of low and
22 moderate income, or for the making of homeownership mortgage loans or housing
23 rehabilitation loans to persons and families of low and moderate income, an
24 applicant under s. 234.59 or other eligible beneficiaries as defined in s.
25 234.49. The loans may be made only upon the determination by the authority
26 that they are not otherwise available from private lenders upon reasonably
27 equivalent terms and conditions. The authority may not make a loan to a
28 person if it receives a certification under s. 46.255 (7) that the person is

1 delinquent in child support or maintenance payments. The authority may
2 employ, for such compensation as it determines, the services of any financial
3 institution or mortgage banker in connection with any loan.

4 ••87b0557/1 •• 87b1226/2••SECTION 1965g. 234.49 (1) (c) of the statutes
5 is amended to read:

6 234.49 (1) (c) "Eligible beneficiary" means ~~any~~ a person for whom the
7 authority has not received a certification from the department of health and
8 social services under s. 46.255 (7) or a family who or which falls within the
9 income limits specified in par. (f).

10 ••87b0557/1 •• 87b1226/2••SECTION 1965r. 234.59 (3) (c) of the statutes
11 is created to read:

12 234.59 (3) (c) The authority shall notify an eligible lender if it
13 receives a certification under s. 46.255 (7) that a person is delinquent in
14 child support or maintenance payments. An eligible lender may not make a loan
15 to an applicant if it receives notification under this paragraph concerning
16 the applicant.

17 ••87b0190/1••SECTION 1965s. 234.60 (3) (bs) of the statutes is created to
18 read:

19 234.60 (3) (bs) The authority may not issue in 1987 bonds or notes the
20 aggregate principal amount of which exceeds the greater of the following:

21 1. An amount equal to 8.55% of the average annual aggregate principal
22 amount of mortgages executed during the 3 years preceding the year of issuance
23 for single-unit, owner-occupied dwellings in this state.

24 2. An amount equal to \$205,000,000.

25 ••87b0190/1••SECTION 1965y. 234.60 (5) of the statutes is amended to
26 read:

1 234.60 (5) No bonds or notes may be issued under this section after
2 December 31, ~~1986~~ 1988, except bonds or notes issued to refund outstanding
3 bonds or notes issued under this section.

4 ••87-1844/3••SECTION 1966. 234.65 (1) (cm) of the statutes is amended to
5 read:

6 234.65 (1) (cm) No bonds or notes may be issued under this section after
7 ~~June 30, 1987, or the date of publication of the 1987-89 biennial budget act,~~
8 ~~whichever is later~~ December 31, 1989, except bonds or notes issued to refund
9 outstanding bonds and notes issued under this section.

10 ••87-1845/1••SECTION 1967. 234.65 (2) of the statutes is renumbered
11 234.65 (2) (a).

12 ••87-1845/1••SECTION 1968. 234.65 (2) (b) of the statutes is created to
13 read:

14 234.65 (2) (b) Paragraph (a) does not apply to an economic development
15 loan to finance an economic development project described under s. 234.01 (4n)
16 (c).

17 ••87b0911/1 •• 87b1226/2••SECTION 1968m. 234.65 (3) (a) 2 of the statutes
18 is amended to read:

19 234.65 (3) (a) 2. The authority has received an estimate issued under s.
20 560.034 (5) (b), and the department of development has estimated ~~whether~~ that
21 the project which the authority would finance under the loan is expected to
22 ~~eliminate~~, create or maintain jobs on the project site and elsewhere in this
23 state and the net number of jobs expected to be ~~eliminated~~, created or main-
24 tained as a result of the project.

25 ••87b0911/1 •• 87b1226/2••SECTION 1968mg. 234.65 (3) (a) 3 of the stat-
26 utes is repealed.

27 ••87-1845/1••SECTION 1969. 234.65 (3) (a) 4 of the statutes is amended to
28 read:

1 234.65 (3) (a) 4. Subdivisions ~~1 to 3~~ and 2 do not apply to a person
2 engaged in the business of operating a railroad or to an economic development
3 loan to finance an economic development project described under s. 234.01 (4n)
4 (c).

5 ••87-1845/1••SECTION 1970. 234.65 (3) (e) of the statutes is amended to
6 read:

7 234.65 (3) (e) The economic development loan will not be used to refi-
8 nance existing debt, unless it is in conjunction with an expansion of the
9 business or job creation. This paragraph does not apply to an economic
10 development loan to finance an economic development project described under s.
11 234.01 (4n) (c).

12 ••87b0557/1 •• 87b1226/2••SECTION 1970m. 234.65 (3) (f) of the statutes
13 is created to read:

14 234.65 (3) (f) The authority has not received a certification under s.
15 46.255 (7) that the person receiving the loan is delinquent in child support
16 or maintenance payments.

17 ••87-1845/1••SECTION 1971. 234.65 (3r) of the statutes is amended to
18 read:

19 234.65 (3r) Any economic development loan which a business receives from
20 the authority under this section to finance a project shall require the busi-
21 ness to submit to the department of development within 12 months after the
22 project is completed or 2 years after a loan is issued to finance the project,
23 whichever is sooner, on a form prescribed under s. 560.034 (1), the net number
24 of jobs eliminated, created or maintained on the project site and elsewhere in
25 this state as a result of the project. This subsection does not apply to an
26 economic development loan to finance an economic development project described
27 under s. 234.01 (4n) (c).

28 ••87b0474/2••SECTION 1971m. 234.85 of the statutes is created to read:

1 234.85 MINORITY FINANCIAL INTERESTS. (1) In this section, "minority
2 business", "minority financial adviser" and "minority investment firm" mean a
3 business, financial adviser and investment firm, respectively, certified by
4 the department of development under s. 560.036 (2).

5 (2) The authority shall attempt to ensure that at least 5% of the total
6 amount purchased by the authority from private vendors in each state fiscal
7 year and at least 5% of the total amount contracted and subcontracted under
8 contracts made by the authority to private contractors and subcontractors in
9 each state fiscal year are awarded to vendors, contractors or subcontractors
10 that are minority businesses.

11 (3) In issuing bonds and notes by competitive sale, the authority shall
12 attempt to ensure that 5% of the total amount of bonds and notes issued in
13 each fiscal year is underwritten by minority investment firms.

14 (4) In issuing bonds and notes by negotiated sale, the authority shall
15 attempt to ensure that 5% of the total amount of bonds and notes issued in
16 each fiscal year is underwritten by minority investment firms.

17 (5) In issuing bonds and notes by competitive sale or negotiated sale,
18 the authority shall attempt to ensure that 5% of the total moneys expended in
19 such fiscal year for the services of financial advisers are expended for the
20 services of minority financial advisers.

21 (6) The authority shall annually report to the department of administra-
22 tion the total amount purchased from and contracted or subcontracted under
23 contracts made by the authority to minority businesses, the total amount of
24 bonds and notes issued by the authority with the underwriting services of
25 minority investment firms and the total amount of moneys expended by the
26 authority for the services of minority financial advisers during the preceding
27 state fiscal year.

1 ••87-2246/2••SECTION 1986bm. 341.45 (1m) (c) of the statutes is created
2 to read:

3 341.45 (1m) (c) Whenever a person is convicted of evading the tax
4 required to be paid under sub. (1g), the clerk of the court shall, as provided
5 in s. 345.48, forward to the department the record of conviction.

6 ••87-2246/2••SECTION 1986bp. 341.45 (4) to (6) of the statutes are
7 created to read:

8 341.45 (4) The secretary may ratify and effectuate the international fuel
9 tax agreement or other fuel tax agreement.

10 (5) The department, in consultation with the department of revenue, shall
11 promulgate rules under ch. 227 necessary to administer this section. The
12 rules shall include provisions relating to the exchange of information under
13 this section between the department and the department of revenue under sub.
14 (1m) and s. 78.79.

15 (6) (a) Any person who uses a false or fictitious name or gives a false
16 or fictitious address in any application or form required by this section or
17 otherwise commits a fraud in any application, record, report or claim for
18 refund under this section may be fined not more than \$500 or imprisoned not
19 more than 6 months or both.

20 (b) Any person who fails or refuses to make a report or payment as pro-
21 vided in this section may be fined not more than \$5,000 or imprisoned in the
22 county jail for not more than one year or both.

23 ••87-2246/2••SECTION 1986br. The unnumbered subchapter title preceding
24 341.47 of the statutes is numbered subchapter IV (title) of chapter 341.

25 ••87-2246/2••SECTION 1986d. The unnumbered subchapter title preceding
26 341.60 of the statutes is numbered subchapter V (title) of chapter 341.

27 ••87-2246/2••SECTION 1986dg. 341.63 (1m) of the statutes is created to
28 read:

1 341.63 (1m) The department may suspend any Wisconsin registration of a
2 person who fails to pay the tax required to be paid under s. 341.45 (1g) in a
3 timely manner or who is convicted of evading the tax required to be paid under
4 s. 341.45 (1g).

5 ••87b1364/1 •• 87b1751/en••SECTION 1986m. 343.14 (4m) of the statutes is
6 created to read:

7 343.14 (4m) The department shall develop designs for licenses and iden-
8 tification cards which are resistant to tampering and forgery no later than
9 January 1, 1989. Licenses and identification cards issued on or after January
10 1, 1989, shall incorporate the designs required under this subsection.

11 ••87b1364/1 •• 87b1751/en••SECTION 1986n. 343.14 (5) of the statutes is
12 amended to read:

13 343.14 (5) Any person who uses a false or fictitious name in any appli-
14 cation for a license or identification card or knowingly makes a false state-
15 ment or knowingly conceals a material fact or otherwise commits a fraud in any
16 such application may be fined not more than ~~\$100~~ \$500 or imprisoned not more
17 than 6 months or both.

18 ••87b1364/1 •• 87b1751/en••SECTION 1988m. 343.19 (2) of the statutes is
19 amended to read:

20 343.19 (2) Any person who knowingly makes a false statement in an appli-
21 cation for a duplicate license or identification card or who fails to return
22 the original to the department upon finding it or who fails to comply with any
23 other requirement of this section may be ~~required to forfeit~~ fined not more
24 than ~~\$100~~ \$500 or imprisoned for not more than 6 months or both.

25 ••87b1363/3 •• 87b1751/en••SECTION 1990m. 343.24 (4) of the statutes is
26 created to read:

27 343.24 (4) The department shall not disclose the record of a reportable
28 accident in which a licensee was involved in the course of the licensee's

1 employment as a law enforcement officer, fire fighter, emergency medical
2 technician -- advanced (paramedic) or operator of a motor bus for an urban
3 mass transit system, as defined in s. 85.20 (1) (L), to any person other than
4 a court, district attorney, county corporation counsel, city, village or town
5 attorney, the licensee or the person who is the employer of the licensee in
6 the capacity specified in this subsection.

7 ••87b0349/1••SECTION 2022m. 343.305 (5) (b) of the statutes, as affected
8 by 1987 Wisconsin Act 3, section 29, is amended to read:

9 343.305 (5) (b) Blood may be withdrawn from the person arrested for
10 violation of s. ~~30.68 (1)~~, 346.63 (1), (2) or (2m), 350.10 (3) or 940.25, or
11 s. 940.09 where the offense involved the use of a vehicle, or a local ordi-
12 nance in conformity with s. 346.63 (1) or (2m) or 350.10 (3), or as provided
13 in sub. (3) (b) to determine the presence or quantity of alcohol, a controlled
14 substance, a combination of alcohol and a controlled substance, any other drug
15 or a combination of alcohol and any other drug in the blood only by a
16 physician, registered nurse, medical technologist, physician's assistant or
17 person acting under the direction of a physician.

18 ••87a0405/1••SECTION 2022p. 343.305 (6) (b) 3 of the statutes, as
19 affected by 1987 Wisconsin Act 3, is amended to read:

20 343.305 (6) (b) 3. Have trained technicians, approved by the secretary,
21 test and certify the accuracy of the equipment to be used by law enforcement
22 officers for chemical analysis of a person's breath under sub. (3) (a) before
23 regular use of the equipment and periodically thereafter at intervals of not
24 more than ~~60~~ 120 days; and

25 ••87-2238/1••SECTION 2022r. 343.305 (10) (b) 3 of the statutes is amended
26 to read:

27 343.305 (10) (b) 3. Have trained technicians, approved by the secretary,
28 test and certify the accuracy of the equipment to be used by traffic officers

1 for chemical analysis of a person's breath under sub. (2) (b) before regular
2 use of the equipment and periodically thereafter at intervals of not more than
3 ~~60~~ 120 days; and

4 ••87b1364/1 •• 87b1751/en••SECTION 2022u. 343.50 (3) of the statutes is
5 amended to read:

6 343.50 (3) DESIGN AND CONTENTS OF CARD. The card shall be of the same
7 size ~~and general design of as~~ an operator's license but shall ~~be of a design~~
8 which is readily distinguishable from the design of an operator's license and
9 bear upon it the words "IDENTIFICATION CARD ONLY". The information on the
10 card shall be the same as specified under s. 343.17 (1) and the holder may
11 affix a sticker thereto as provided in s. 343.17 (3). The card shall contain
12 the holder's photograph.

13 ••87-2636/1••SECTION 2023g. 344.30 (1) of the statutes is amended to
14 read:

15 344.30 (1) ~~A certificate~~ Certification of insurance as provided in s.
16 344.31 or 344.32; or

17 ••87-2636/1••SECTION 2023i. 344.31 of the statutes is amended to read:

18 344.31 (title) CERTIFICATION OF INSURANCE AS PROOF. Proof of financial
19 responsibility for the future may be furnished by filing with the secretary
20 the written ~~certificate~~ certification of any insurer duly authorized to do
21 business in this state ~~certifying~~ that there is in effect a motor vehicle
22 liability policy for the benefit of the person required to furnish proof of
23 financial responsibility or by transmitting such certification to the secre-
24 tary by another means approved by the secretary. Such ~~certificate~~ certifi-
25 cation shall give the effective date of such motor vehicle liability policy,
26 which date shall be the same as the effective date of the ~~certificate~~
27 certification and shall certify coverage for any motor vehicle operated by the
28 named insured.

1 ••87-2636/1••SECTION 2023k. 344.32 (title), (1) (intro.) and (2) of the
2 statutes are amended to read:

3 344.32 (title) CERTIFICATION FURNISHED BY NONRESIDENTS AS PROOF. (1)
4 (intro.) A nonresident may give proof of financial responsibility by filing
5 with the secretary a written ~~certificate~~ certification of an insurer autho-
6 rized to transact an automobile liability or surety business in the state in
7 which the person resides or by transmitting such certification to the secre-
8 tary by another means approved by the secretary, provided the ~~certificate~~
9 certification otherwise conforms to this chapter. The secretary shall accept
10 the ~~certificate~~ certification if the insurer complies with the following with
11 respect to the policies so certified:

12 (2) If any insurer not authorized to transact business in this state,
13 which has qualified to furnish proof of financial responsibility, defaults in
14 any such undertakings or agreements, the secretary shall not thereafter accept
15 as proof any ~~certificate~~ certification of such carrier whether theretofore
16 filed or thereafter tendered as proof, so long as such default continues.

17 ••87-2636/1••SECTION 2023m. 344.34 of the statutes is amended to read:

18 344.34 NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR TERMINATION OF CERTIFIED POLICY. When
19 an insurer has certified a motor vehicle liability policy under s. 344.31 or a
20 policy under s. 344.32, the insurance so certified shall not be canceled or
21 terminated until at least 10 days after a notice of cancellation or termina-
22 tion of the insurance so certified has been filed in the office of the
23 secretary. No insurance so certified may be canceled or terminated by the
24 insurer prior to the expiration of 90 days from the effective date of the
25 ~~certificate~~ certification on the grounds of failure to pay a premium when due.
26 Such a policy subsequently procured and certified shall, on the effective date
27 of its certification, terminate the insurance previously certified. Any

1 certification or recertification filed by the same insurer following cancel-
2 lation shall be accompanied by a fee of \$3 payable by the insurer.

3 ••87-2636/1••SECTION 2023p. 344.39 of the statutes is amended to read:

4 344.39 SUBSTITUTION OF PROOF. The secretary shall consent to the
5 cancellation of any bond or ~~certificate~~ certification of insurance or return
6 any money or securities to the person entitled thereto upon the substitution
7 and acceptance of other adequate proof of financial responsibility pursuant to
8 this chapter.

9 ••87-2636/1••SECTION 2023q. 344.41 (1) (intro.) of the statutes is
10 amended to read:

11 344.41 (1) (intro.) Subject to the exceptions set forth in sub. (2), the
12 secretary shall, upon request, consent to the immediate cancellation of any
13 bond or ~~certificate~~ certification of insurance, return to the person entitled
14 thereto any money or securities deposited pursuant to this chapter as proof of
15 financial responsibility and shall waive any requirement of the filing of
16 proof of financial responsibility whenever any of the following events has
17 occurred:

18 ••87b0201/1••SECTION 2035g. 345.26 (1) (b) 1 of the statutes is amended
19 to read:

20 345.26 (1) (b) 1. If the person fails to appear in court at the time
21 fixed in the citation, the person will be deemed to have tendered a plea of no
22 contest and submitted to a forfeiture and a penalty assessment, if required by
23 s. 165.87, and a jail assessment, if required by s. 53.46 (1), plus the any
24 applicable fees prescribed in ~~s.~~ ss. 814.63 (1) and (2) ~~or~~, 814.635 and 814.65
25 (1), not to exceed the amount of the deposit which the court may accept as
26 provided in s. 345.37; or

27 ••87b1690/1••SECTION 2035h. 345.26 (1) (b) 2 of the statutes is amended
28 to read:

1 345.26 (1) (b) 2. If the person fails to appear in court at the time
2 fixed in the citation and if the court does not accept the deposit as a for-
3 feiture ~~and~~, a penalty assessment, if required by s. 165.87, and a jail
4 assessment, if required by s. 53.46 (1), for the violation, the person will be
5 summoned into court to answer the complaint.

6 ••87b0201/1••SECTION 2035p. 345.26 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to
7 read:

8 345.26 (2) (b) In addition to the amount in par. (a), the deposit shall
9 include court costs, including ~~the~~ any applicable fees prescribed in ~~s-~~ ss.
10 814.63 (1) and (2) ~~or, 814.635 and 814.65 (1) and a,~~ any applicable penalty
11 assessment ~~if~~ and any applicable jail assessment.

12 ••87b0201/1••SECTION 2036g. 345.27 (1) of the statutes is amended to
13 read:

14 345.27 (1) If a person is issued a citation for a violation of a traffic
15 regulation, the person may make a stipulation of no contest and deposit in
16 accordance with the schedule established under s. 345.26 (2) (a) at the office
17 of the clerk of court, sheriff, or city, village or town police department or
18 a precinct station, headquarters of the county traffic patrol, district head-
19 quarters or station of the state traffic patrol, or the office of the municipi-
20 pal judge in the county in which the citation was issued as designated by the
21 arresting officer or the person may mail the stipulation and deposit to the
22 place designated by the arresting officer. The deposit shall include the
23 penalty assessment imposed by s. 165.87, the jail assessment imposed by s.
24 53.46 (1) and court costs, including ~~the~~ any applicable fees prescribed in ~~s-~~
25 ss. 814.63 (1) and (2) ~~or, 814.635 and 814.65 (1)~~. The stipulation shall be
26 received within 10 days of the date of the alleged violation. The person who
27 has mailed or filed a stipulation under this subsection may, however, appear
28 in court on the court appearance date. If a person appears in court after

1 making a stipulation, s. 345.37 (3) applies. Stipulations are not permitted
2 for violations of ss. 346.62 (1) and 346.63 (1) or a local ordinance which is
3 in conformity therewith.

4 ••87b1690/1••SECTION 2036h. 345.27 (2) of the statutes is amended to
5 read:

6 345.27 (2) If a person is cited for a violation for which a stipulation
7 is authorized and makes a timely stipulation and pays the required deposit,
8 the person need not appear in court. Before allowing the arrested person to
9 make a stipulation and deposit, the arresting officer or the person receiving
10 the stipulation and deposit shall comply with s. 343.27 or, if the stipulation
11 and deposit are mailed, the signed statement required under s. 343.27 shall be
12 mailed with it. The official receiving the stipulation and deposit shall
13 promptly transmit the stipulation and deposit to the clerk of court or the
14 municipal judge having jurisdiction in the county. The clerk of the court or
15 the municipal judge having jurisdiction in the county may receive stipulations
16 according to this subsection and shall receive all other stipulations made
17 under sub. (1) but the municipal judge shall process a stipulation when a
18 citation is issued within his or her municipality. The clerk or municipal
19 judge shall, upon the receipt of a stipulation, record a judgment of convic-
20 tion and enter deposits as fines or forfeitures ~~and~~, penalty assessments and
21 jail assessments and shall comply with ss. 343.28 and 345.37 (5). The judge
22 or the court may relieve any person from a stipulation or any other order,
23 judgment or conviction entered or made as provided in s. 345.37 (3).

24 ••87b1690/1••SECTION 2036i. 345.36 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to
25 read:

26 345.36 (2) (b) Deem the nonappearance a plea of no contest and enter
27 judgment accordingly. If the defendant has posted bond for appearance at that
28 date, the court may also order the bond forfeited. The court shall promptly

1 mail a copy of the judgment to the defendant. The judgment shall allow not
2 less than 20 days from the date thereof for payment of any forfeiture, penalty
3 assessment, jail assessment and costs imposed. If the defendant moves to open
4 the judgment within 20 days after the date set for trial, and shows to the
5 satisfaction of the court that the failure to appear was due to mistake,
6 inadvertence, surprise or excusable neglect, the court shall open the
7 judgment, reinstate the not guilty plea and set a new trial date. The court
8 may impose costs under s. 814.07. The court shall immediately notify the
9 department to delete the record of conviction based upon the original
10 judgment.

11 ••87b0201/1••SECTION 2036r. 345.37 (2) of the statutes is amended to
12 read:

13 345.37 (2) If the defendant has made a deposit under s. 345.26, the
14 citation may serve as the initial pleading and the defendant shall be deemed
15 to have tendered a plea of no contest and submitted to a forfeiture and a
16 penalty assessment, if required by s. 165.87, and a jail assessment, if
17 required by s. 53.46 (1), plus costs, including the any applicable fees pre-
18 scribed in ~~s.~~ ss. 814.63 (1) and (2) ~~of~~, 814.635 and 814.65 (1), not exceeding
19 the amount of the deposit. The court may either accept the plea of no contest
20 and enter judgment accordingly, or reject the plea and issue a summons under
21 ch. 968. If the defendant fails to appear in response to the summons, the
22 court shall issue a warrant under ch. 968. If the court accepts the plea of
23 no contest, the defendant may move within 6 months after the date set for the
24 appearance to withdraw the plea of no contest, open the judgment and enter a
25 plea of not guilty upon a showing to the satisfaction of the court that the
26 failure to appear was due to mistake, inadvertence, surprise or excusable
27 neglect. If on reopening, the defendant is found not guilty the court shall

1 immediately notify the department to delete the record of conviction based on
2 the original proceeding and shall order the defendant's deposit returned.

3 ••87b1690/1••SECTION 2036s. 345.37 (3) of the statutes is amended to
4 read:

5 345.37 (3) If the defendant has stipulated no contest under s. 345.27,
6 the court or judge having trial jurisdiction of the violation may, on motion
7 with or without notice, for cause shown by affidavit and upon just terms,
8 within 10 days after the stipulation has been entered into, relieve any party
9 from the stipulation and the effects thereof. If a party is relieved from the
10 plea of no contest, the court or judge may order the stipulation or a written
11 complaint to be filed and set the matter for trial. After trial the penalty
12 assessment, if required by s. 165.87, jail assessment, if required by s. 53.46
13 (1), costs and fees shall be taxed as provided by law.

14 ••87b1690/1••SECTION 2036t. 345.37 (4) of the statutes is amended to
15 read:

16 345.37 (4) If a violator's deposit is forfeited for, or if an alleged
17 violator stipulates to entry of, a plea of no contest to any violation for
18 which his or her operator's record will be charged with demerit points as
19 established by rule under s. 343.32 (2), the official accepting the forfeiture
20 and, the penalty assessment, if required by s. 165.87, and the jail
21 assessment, if required by s. 53.46 (1), shall comply with s. 343.27 (3).

22 ••87b1690/1••SECTION 2036u. 345.37 (5) of the statutes is amended to
23 read:

24 345.37 (5) Within 5 working days after forfeiture of deposit or entry of
25 default judgment, the official receiving the forfeiture and, the penalty
26 assessment, if required by s. 165.87, and the jail assessment, if required by
27 s. 53.46 (1), shall forward to the department a certification of the entry of
28 default judgment or a judgment of forfeiture.

1 ••87b1690/1••SECTION 2036v. 345.375 (2) of the statutes is amended to
2 read:

3 345.375 (2) Upon default of the defendant corporation or upon conviction,
4 judgment for the amount of the forfeiture ~~and~~ the penalty assessment, if
5 required under s. 165.87, and the jail assessment, if required by s. 53.46
6 (1), shall be entered.

7 ••87b1690/1••SECTION 2036w. 345.47 (title) of the statutes is amended to
8 read:

9 345.47 (title) JUDGMENT OF FORFEITURES AND ASSESSMENTS.

10 ••87b1690/1••SECTION 2036x. 345.47 (1) (intro.) of the statutes is
11 amended to read:

12 345.47 (1) (intro.) If the defendant is found guilty, the court may enter
13 judgment against the defendant for a monetary amount not to exceed the maximum
14 forfeiture ~~and~~ penalty assessment, if required by s. 165.87, and the jail
15 assessment, if required by s. 53.46 (1), provided for the violation and for
16 costs under s. 345.53 and, in addition, may suspend or revoke his or her
17 operating privilege under s. 343.30. If the judgment is not paid, the court
18 shall order:

19 ••87b1690/1••SECTION 2036y. 345.47 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to
20 read:

21 345.47 (1) (b) In lieu of imprisonment and in addition to any other sus-
22 pension or revocation, that the defendant's operating privilege be suspended
23 for a period of time not less than 30 days nor more than 6 months. If the
24 person pays the forfeiture ~~and~~ the penalty assessment, if required by s.
25 165.87, and the jail assessment, if required by s. 53.46 (1), after suspension
26 under this section, the suspension shall be reduced to the minimum period of
27 30 days. Suspension under this paragraph shall not affect the power of the

1 court to suspend or revoke under s. 343.30 or the power of the secretary to
2 suspend or revoke ~~such~~ the operating privilege.

3 ••87b1690/1••SECTION 2036za. 345.47 (1) (c) of the statutes is amended to
4 read:

5 345.47 (1) (c) If a court or judge suspends an operating privilege under
6 this section, the court or judge shall immediately take possession of the
7 suspended license and shall forward it to the department together with the
8 notice of suspension, which shall clearly state that the suspension was for
9 failure to pay a forfeiture ~~and~~, a penalty assessment, if required by s.
10 165.87, and a jail assessment, if required by s. 53.46 (1), imposed by the
11 court. The notice of suspension and the suspended license, if it is
12 available, shall be forwarded to the department within 48 hours after the
13 order of suspension. If the forfeiture ~~and~~, penalty assessment ~~is~~ and jail
14 assessment are paid during a period of suspension the court or judge shall
15 immediately notify the department. Upon receipt of the notice and payment of
16 the reinstatement fee under s. 343.21 (1) (j), the department shall return the
17 license when the minimum period of suspension has passed.

18 ••87b1690/1••SECTION 2036zb. 345.47 (2) of the statutes is amended to
19 read:

20 345.47 (2) The payment of any judgment may be suspended or deferred for
21 not more than 60 days in the discretion of the court. In cases where a
22 deposit has been made, any forfeitures, penalty assessments, jail assessments
23 and costs shall be taken out of the deposit and the balance, if any, returned
24 to the defendant.

25 ••87b1690/1••SECTION 2036zc. 345.47 (3) of the statutes is amended to
26 read:

27 345.47 (3) When a defendant is imprisoned for nonpayment of a forfeiture
28 ~~or~~, a penalty assessment or a jail assessment for an action brought by a

1 municipality located in more than one county, any commitment to a county
2 institution shall be to the county in which the action was tried.

3 ••87b1690/1••SECTION 2036zd. 345.49 of the statutes is amended to read:

4 345.49 (title) PROCEDURE ON IMPRISONMENT; NONPAYMENT OF FORFEITURE OR
5 ASSESSMENTS. (1) Any person imprisoned under s. 345.47 for nonpayment of a
6 forfeiture ~~or~~, a penalty assessment, if required by s. 165.87, or a jail
7 assessment, if required by s. 53.46 (1), may, on request, be allowed to work
8 under s. 56.08. If the person does work, earnings shall be applied on the
9 unpaid forfeiture ~~or~~, penalty assessment or jail assessment after payment of
10 personal board and expenses and support of personal dependents to the extent
11 directed by the court.

12 (2) Any person who is subject to imprisonment under s. 345.47 for non-
13 payment of a forfeiture ~~or~~, penalty assessment or jail assessment may be
14 placed on probation to some person satisfactory to the court for not more than
15 90 days or until the forfeiture ~~or~~, penalty assessment or jail assessment is
16 paid if that is done before expiration of the 90-day period. The payment of
17 the forfeiture ~~or~~, penalty assessment or jail assessment during ~~such that~~
18 period shall be a condition of ~~such the~~ probation. If the forfeiture ~~or~~,
19 penalty assessment or jail assessment is not paid or the court deems that the
20 interests of justice require, probation may be terminated and the defendant
21 imprisoned as provided in sub. (1) or s. 345.47.

22 ••87b1690/1••SECTION 2036ze. 345.61 (2) (c) of the statutes is amended to
23 read:

24 345.61 (2) (c) "Guaranteed arrest bond certificate" as used in this
25 section means any printed card or other certificate issued by an automobile
26 club, association or insurance company to any of its members or insureds,
27 which card or certificate is signed by the member or insureds and contains a
28 printed statement that the automobile club, association or insurance company

1 and a surety company, or an insurance company authorized to transact both
2 automobile liability insurance and surety business, guarantee the appearance
3 of the persons whose signature appears on the card or certificate and that
4 they will in the event of failure of the person to appear in court at the time
5 of trial, pay any fine or forfeiture imposed on the person, including the
6 penalty assessment required by s. 165.87 and the jail assessment required by
7 s. 53.46 (1), in an amount not exceeding \$200, or \$1,000 as provided in sub.
8 (1) (b).

9 ••87b1361/1 •• 87b1751/en••SECTION 2037m. 346.14 (2) of the statutes is
10 amended to read:

11 346.14 (2) Upon a highway outside a business or residence district, the
12 operator of any motor truck with a gross weight of more than 10,000 pounds or
13 of any motor vehicle which is drawing or towing another vehicle where the
14 combined gross weight is more than 10,000 pounds shall keep the vehicle he or
15 she is operating at a distance of not less than 500 feet to the rear of any
16 vehicle immediately preceding it, being driven in the same direction. This
17 subsection does not apply upon any lane especially designated for use by motor
18 trucks or by truck tractor-semitrailer or tractor-trailer units nor does it
19 apply when overtaking and passing another vehicle, but the fact that the
20 operator of any vehicle or combination of vehicles mentioned in this subsec-
21 tion follows the preceding vehicle more closely than 500 feet for one mile or
22 more or follows more closely than 500 feet when the preceding vehicle is
23 moving at the maximum speed then and there permissible for such following
24 vehicle is prima facie evidence that the operator of such following vehicle is
25 violating this subsection.

26 ••87b0349/1••SECTION 2038g. 346.63 (2m) of the statutes, as affected by
27 1987 Wisconsin Act 3, section 39, is amended to read:

1 346.63 (2m) If a person has not attained the age of 19, the person may
2 not drive or operate a motor vehicle while he or she has a blood alcohol
3 concentration of more than 0.0% but not more than 0.1% by weight of alcohol in
4 the person's blood or more than 0.0 grams but not more than 0.1 grams of
5 alcohol in 210 liters of that person's breath. One penalty for violation of
6 this subsection is suspension of a person's operating privilege under s.
7 343.30 (1p). The person is eligible for an occupational license under s.
8 343.10 (1) at any time. If a person arrested for a violation of this subsec-
9 tion refuses to take a test under s. 343.305, the refusal is a separate
10 violation and the person is subject to revocation of the person's operating
11 privilege under s. 343.305 (9) (em).

12 ••87b0349/1••SECTION 2038r. 346.63 (2m) of the statutes, as affected by
13 1987 Wisconsin Act 3, section 40, is amended to read:

14 346.63 (2m) If a person has not attained the age of 19, the person may
15 not drive or operate a motor vehicle while he or she has a blood alcohol
16 concentration of more than 0.0% but not more than 0.1% by weight of alcohol in
17 the person's blood or more than 0.0 grams but not more than 0.1 grams of
18 alcohol in 210 liters of that person's breath. One penalty for violation of
19 this subsection is suspension of a person's operating privilege under s.
20 343.30 (1p). The person is eligible for an occupational license under s.
21 343.10 (1) at any time. If a person arrested for a violation of this subsec-
22 tion refuses to take a test under s. 343.305, the refusal is a separate
23 violation and the person is subject to revocation of the person's operating
24 privilege under s. 343.305 (10) (em).

25 ••87b0349/1••SECTION 2042m. 346.65 (2g) of the statutes, as affected by
26 1987 Wisconsin Act 3, is amended to read:

27 346.65 (2g) In addition to the authority of the court under s. 973.05 (3)
28 (a) to provide that a defendant perform community service work for a public

1 agency or a nonprofit charitable organization in lieu of part or all of a fine
2 imposed under sub. (2) (b) or (c), the court may provide that a defendant
3 perform community service work for a public agency or a nonprofit charitable
4 organization in lieu of part or all of a forfeiture under sub. (2) (a) or may
5 require a person who is subject to sub. (2) to perform community service work
6 for a public agency or a nonprofit charitable organization in addition to the
7 penalties specified under sub (2). Notwithstanding s. 973.05 (3) (b), an
8 order may only apply if agreed to by the organization or agency. The court
9 shall ensure that the defendant is provided a written statement of the terms
10 of the community service order and that the community service order is
11 monitored. Any organization or agency acting in good faith to which a defen-
12 dant is assigned pursuant to an order under this subsection has immunity from
13 any civil liability in excess of \$25,000 for acts or omissions by or impacting
14 on the defendant. The issuance or possibility of the issuance of a community
15 service order under this subsection does not entitle an indigent defendant who
16 is subject to sub. (2) (a) to representation by counsel under ch. 977.

17 ••87b0349/1••SECTION 2043m. 346.65 (2m) of the statutes, as affected by
18 1987 Wisconsin Act 3, is amended to read:

19 346.65 (2m) In imposing a sentence under sub. (2) for a violation of s.
20 346.63 (1) (b) or a local ordinance in conformity therewith, the court shall
21 review the record and consider the aggravating and mitigating factors in the
22 matter. If the level of the person's blood alcohol level is known, the court
23 shall consider that level as a factor in sentencing. The chief judge of each
24 judicial administrative district shall adopt guidelines, under the chief
25 judge's authority to adopt local rules under SCR 70.34, for the consideration
26 of aggravating and mitigating factors.

27 ••87b1690/1••SECTION 2043r. 346.655 (1) of the statutes, as affected by
28 1987 Wisconsin Act 3, is amended to read:

1 346.655 (1) On or after October 1, 1985, if a court imposes a fine or a
2 forfeiture for a violation of s. 346.63 (1), or a local ordinance in conform-
3 ity therewith, or s. 346.63 (2) or 940.25, or s. 940.09 where the offense
4 involved the use of a vehicle, it shall impose a driver improvement surcharge
5 in an amount of \$200 in addition to the fine or forfeiture and, penalty
6 assessment and jail assessment.

7 ••87b0869/1 •• 87b1226/2••SECTION 2044g. 348.25 (4) (intro.) of the
8 statutes is amended to read:

9 348.25 (4) (intro.) Except as provided under s. 348.26 (5) or (6) or
10 348.27 (3m), (9m), (9r) or (13), permits shall be issued only for the trans-
11 porting of a single article or vehicle which exceeds statutory size, weight or
12 load limitations and which cannot reasonably be divided or reduced to comply
13 with statutory size, weight or load limitations, except that:

14 ••87b0869/1 •• 87b1226/2••SECTION 2044r. 348.27 (9m) of the statutes is
15 created to read:

16 348.27 (9m) TRANSPORTATION OF RAW FOREST PRODUCTS. The department may
17 issue annual or consecutive month permits for the transportation of raw forest
18 products, as defined in s. 26.05 (1), in vehicles or vehicle combinations
19 which exceed the maximum gross weight limitations under s. 348.15 (3) (c) by
20 not more than 10,000 pounds. A permit issued under this subsection does not
21 authorize the operation of any vehicle or vehicle combination at a maximum
22 gross weight in excess of 90,000 pounds. This subsection does not apply to
23 the transportation of raw forest products on highways designated as part of
24 the national system of interstate and defense highways.

25 ••87b1367/1 •• 87b1751/en••SECTION 2044t. 348.27 (9r) of the statutes is
26 created to read:

27 348.27 (9r) TRANSPORTATION OF SCRAP. The department may issue an annual
28 or consecutive month permit for the transportation of metallic or nonmetallic

1 scrap for the purpose of recycling or processing on a vehicle or combination
2 of vehicles which exceeds statutory weight or length limitations and for the
3 return of the vehicle or combination of vehicles when empty. This subsection
4 does not apply to the transportation of scrap on highways designated as part
5 of the national system of interstate and defense highways.

6 ••87b0349/1••SECTION 2045g. 349.03 (2) of the statutes, as affected by
7 1987 Wisconsin Act 3, is amended to read:

8 349.03 (2) No local authority may enact or enforce any traffic regulation
9 providing for suspension or revocation of motor vehicle operator's licenses or
10 requiring local registration of vehicles, except as authorized by s. 341.35,
11 or in any manner excluding or prohibiting any motor vehicle, mobile home,
12 trailer or semitrailer whose owner has complied with chs. 341 to 348 from the
13 free use of all highways, except as authorized by sub. (3) and ss. 66.046 (1),
14 349.13, 349.17, 349.22 and 349.23. ~~A municipal court may revoke or suspend a~~
15 ~~license for a violation of a local ordinance in conformity with s. 346.63 (1)~~
16 ~~or suspend a license for a violation of a local ordinance in conformity with~~
17 ~~s. 346.63 (2m).~~

18 ••87b0349/1••SECTION 2045r. 349.03 (2m) of the statutes is created to
19 read:

20 349.03 (2m) Notwithstanding sub. (2), a municipal court may suspend a
21 license for a violation of a local ordinance in conformity with s. 346.63 (1)
22 or (2m).

23 ••87b0349/1••SECTION 2046g. 349.06 (1) of the statutes, as affected by
24 1987 Wisconsin Act 3, is amended to read:

25 349.06 (1) Except for the suspension or revocation of motor vehicle
26 operator's licenses, any local authority may enact and enforce any traffic
27 regulation which is in strict conformity with one or more provisions of chs.
28 341 to 348 and 350 for which the penalty for violation thereof is a

1 forfeiture. ~~A municipal court may revoke or suspend a license for a violation~~
2 ~~of a local ordinance in conformity with s. 346.63 (1) or suspend a license for~~
3 ~~a violation of a local ordinance in conformity with s. 346.63 (2m).~~

4 ••87b0349/1••SECTION 2046r. 349.06 (1m) of the statutes is created to
5 read:

6 349.06 (1m) Notwithstanding sub. (1), a municipal court may suspend a
7 license for a violation of a local ordinance in conformity with s. 346.63 (1)
8 or (2m).

9 ••87a0877/1••SECTION 2046s. 350.055 of the statutes is amended to read:

10 350.055 SAFETY CERTIFICATION PROGRAM ESTABLISHED. The department shall
11 establish a program of instruction on snowmobile laws, regulations, safety and
12 related subjects. The program shall be conducted by instructors certified by
13 the department. The department may procure liability insurance coverage for
14 certified instructors for work within the scope of their duties under this
15 section. Persons satisfactorily completing this program shall receive
16 certification from the department. The department may charge each person who
17 enrolls in the course an instruction fee of ~~\$2.50~~ \$5. The department shall
18 authorize instructors conducting such courses meeting standards established by
19 it to retain \$1 of the fee to defray expenses incurred locally to operate the
20 program. The remaining ~~\$1.50~~ \$4 of the fee shall be retained by the depart-
21 ment to defray a part of its expenses incurred to operate the safety and
22 accident reporting program. A person over the age of 12 years but under the
23 age of 16 years who holds a valid certificate issued by another state or
24 province of the Dominion of Canada need not obtain a certificate from the
25 department if the course content of the program in such other state or prov-
26 ince substantially meets that established by the department under this
27 section.

1 ••87b1408/1 •• 87b1791/en••SECTION 2046sm. 350.12 (3) (a) (intro.) of the
2 statutes is amended to read:

3 350.12 (3) (a) (intro.) ~~No~~ Except as provided under sub. (5) (cm), no
4 person may operate and no owner may give permission for the operation of any
5 snowmobile within this state unless the snowmobile is registered for public
6 use or private use under this section and has the registration decals dis-
7 played as required by sub. (5). Any snowmobile may be registered for public
8 use. A snowmobile used exclusively on private property, as defined under s.
9 23.33 (1) (n), may be registered for private use. A snowmobile public-use
10 registration certificate is valid for 2 years beginning the July 1 prior to
11 the date of application if registration is made prior to April 1 and beginning
12 the July 1 subsequent to the date of application if registration is made after
13 April 1 and ending on June 30, 2 years thereafter. A snowmobile private-use
14 registration certificate is valid from the date of issuance until ownership of
15 the snowmobile is transferred. The fee for the issuance or renewal of a
16 public-use registration certificate is \$20. There is no fee for the issuance
17 of a private-use registration certificate.

18 ••87a0877/1••SECTION 2046t. 350.12 (3) (a) 3 of the statutes is amended
19 to read:

20 350.12 (3) (a) 3. The purchaser shall complete the application for
21 transfer and cause it to be mailed or delivered to the department within 10
22 days from the date of purchase. A fee of ~~\$1~~ \$5 shall be paid for transfer of
23 a current registration certificate.

24 ••87a0877/1••SECTION 2046u. 350.12 (3m) (b) of the statutes is amended to
25 read:

26 350.12 (3m) (b) Enforcement and administration account. ~~Thirty percent~~
27 Except as provided under par. (cm), 30% of the moneys collected from snow-

1 mobile registration under this section shall be credited to a separate snow-
2 mobile enforcement and administration account in the conservation fund.

3 ••87a0877/1••SECTION 2046v. 350.12 (3m) (c) of the statutes is amended to
4 read:

5 350.12 (3m) (c) Trail aid account. Seventy percent Except as provided
6 under par. (cm), 70% of the moneys collected from snowmobile registration
7 under this section shall be credited to a separate snowmobile trail aids
8 account in the conservation fund.

9 ••87a0877/1••SECTION 2046w. 350.12 (3m) (cm) of the statutes is created
10 to read:

11 350.12 (3m) (cm) Transfer fees credited. All moneys collected from the
12 transfer of current snowmobile registrations under sub. (3) (a) 3 shall be
13 credited to the separate snowmobile enforcement and administration account in
14 the conservation fund under par. (b).

15 ••87b1408/1 •• 87b1791/en••SECTION 2046wh. 350.12 (5) (b) and (c) of the
16 statutes are amended to read:

17 350.12 (5) (b) The registration certificate or, for owners who purchased
18 a snowmobile ~~from a snowmobile dealer~~ and applied for a registration certifi-
19 cate but who have not yet received the registration certificate, the com-
20 pleted application for registration receipt shall be in the possession of the
21 user of the snowmobile at all times, except in the case of snowmobiles put in
22 use by a commercial owner.

23 (c) The registration certificate or, for owners who purchased a snow-
24 mobile ~~from a snowmobile dealer~~ and applied for a registration certificate but
25 who have not yet received the registration certificate, the completed appli-
26 cation for registration receipt shall be exhibited for inspection on the
27 demand of any person authorized to enforce this section as listed in s. 350.17
28 (1).

1 ••87b1408/1 •• 87b1791/en••SECTION 2046wm. 350.12 (5) (cm) of the stat-
2 utes is created to read:

3 350.12 (5) (cm) A person may operate a snowmobile without having the
4 registration decals displayed as provided under par. (a) if the owner has
5 applied for a registration certificate and paid the required fee and if the
6 user of the snowmobile complies with pars. (b) and (c). This paragraph
7 applies only up to 30 days after the owner has applied for a registration
8 certificate.

9 ••87b0457/1••SECTION 2047c. 422.201 (2) (bm) 1. (intro.) of the statutes
10 is amended to read:

11 422.201 (2) (bm) 1. (intro.) The finance charge, calculated according to
12 the actuarial method, may not exceed the greater of the following for a con-
13 sumer credit transaction entered into on or after November 1, 1981 and before
14 November 1, 1984, ~~or after October 31, 1987:~~

15 ••87b0457/1••SECTION 2047g. 422.201 (2) (bn) of the statutes is amended
16 to read:

17 422.201 (2) (bn) A consumer credit transaction entered into after October
18 31, 1984 ~~and before November 1, 1987~~, is not subject to any maximum limit on
19 finance charges.

20 ••87b0457/1••SECTION 2047n. 422.201 (4) (b) of the statutes is amended to
21 read:

22 422.201 (4) (b) For sellers of farm equipment, farm implements and farm
23 tractors the finance charge on the sale of equipment may not exceed the maxi-
24 mum rate provided in sub. (2) (bm) for consumer credit transactions entered
25 into on or after November 1, 1981 and before November 1, 1984, ~~or after Octo-~~
26 ~~ber 31, 1987.~~

27 ••87b0631/2 •• 87b1226/2••SECTION 2047gg. 422.209 (2) (a) of the statutes
28 is amended to read:

1 422.209 (2) (a) The unearned portion of the precomputed finance charge on
2 consumer credit transactions repayable in substantially equal successive
3 instalments at approximately equal intervals shall be equal to at least that
4 portion of the finance charge which the sums of the instalment balances of the
5 obligation scheduled to be outstanding after the instalment date nearest the
6 date of prepayment bears to the sum of all instalment balances originally
7 scheduled to be outstanding under the obligation. For the purpose of deter-
8 mining the instalment date nearest the date of prepayment when payments are
9 monthly, any prepayment made on or before the 15th day following an instalment
10 due date shall be deemed to have been made as of the instalment due date, and
11 if prepayment occurs on or after the 16th day it shall be deemed to have been
12 made on the succeeding instalment due date. This method of calculating
13 rebates may be referred to as the "rule of 78" or "sum of the digits" method.
14 This paragraph applies to ~~consumer~~ all of the following:

15 1. Consumer credit transactions entered into before November 1, 1981, ~~and~~
16 ~~to consumer.~~

17 2. Consumer credit transactions having initial terms of less than 49
18 months entered into on or after November 1, 1981 and before the effective date
19 of this subdivision [revisor inserts date].

20 ••87b0631/2 •• 87b1226/2••SECTION 2047qh. 422.209 (2) (a) 3 of the stat-
21 utes is created to read:

22 422.209 (2) (a) 3. Consumer credit transactions in which the amount
23 financed is less than \$5,000, which have initial terms of less than 37 months
24 and which are entered into on or after the effective date of this subdivision
25 [revisor inserts date].

26 ••87b0631/2 •• 87b1226/2••SECTION 2047qi. 422.209 (2) (b) (intro.) of the
27 statutes is amended to read:

1 422.209 (2) (b) (intro.) The unearned portion of the finance charge on
2 consumer credit transactions ~~entered into on or after November 1, 1981, and~~
3 ~~which have terms of 49 months or more described in par. (c)~~ is, at the option
4 of the creditor, either of the following:

5 ••87b0631/2 •• 87b1226/2••SECTION 2047qr. 422.209 (2) (c) of the statutes
6 is created to read:

7 422.209 (2) (c) Paragraph (b) applies to all of the following:

8 1. Consumer credit transactions which have terms of 49 months or more and
9 which are entered into after November 1, 1981 and before the effective date of
10 this paragraph [revisor inserts date].

11 2. Consumer credit transactions in which the amount financed is \$5,000 or
12 more and which are entered into on or after the effective date of this sub-
13 division [revisor inserts date].

14 3. Consumer credit transactions in which the amount financed is less than
15 \$5,000, which have initial terms of 37 months or more and which are entered
16 into on or after the effective date of this subdivision [revisor inserts
17 date].

18 ••87b0457/1••SECTION 2047r. 422.402 (6) of the statutes is amended to
19 read:

20 422.402 (6) This section does not apply to consumer credit transactions
21 entered into on or after November 1, 1984, ~~and before October 31, 1987.~~

22 ••87b0457/1••SECTION 2047w. 422.421 (6) (a) 1 of the statutes is amended
23 to read:

24 422.421 (6) (a) 1. Except as provided in s. 422.201 (12), for any vari-
25 able rate transaction, other than one pursuant to an open-end credit plan,
26 entered into before November 1, 1984, ~~or after October 31, 1987,~~ the maximum
27 rate of finance charge for any payment period may not exceed the limit set
28 forth in s. 422.201 (2) (bm) as determined on the earlier of the first day of

1 the payment period or the day notice is given under sub. (5) for the payment
2 period.

3 ••87b0433/2••SECTION 2047x. 425.106 (1) (a) 2 and 3 of the statutes are
4 amended to read:

5 425.106 (1) (a) 2. Fifteen dollars per dependent per week, other than the
6 customer, as claimed by the customer for federal income tax withholding
7 purposes, plus 40 times the federal minimum hourly wage prescribed by the fair
8 labor standards act, 29 U.S.C. s. 206 (a) (1), as amended, under s. 104.025
9 (2) (a) at the time the earnings are payable.

10 3. In the case of earnings not payable by the week, the administrator
11 shall prescribe by rule a multiple of the federal minimum hourly wage equiva-
12 lent in effect to that set forth in subd. 2.

13 ••87-1133/3••SECTION 2048. 440.04 (7) of the statutes is created to read:

14 440.04 (7) Unless otherwise specified in chs. 440 to 459, provide exami-
15 nation development, administration, research and evaluation services as
16 required.

17 ••87-1133/3••SECTION 2049. 440.07 of the statutes is created to read:

18 440.07 EXAMINATION STANDARDS AND SERVICES. (1) In addition to the
19 standards specified in chs. 440 to 459, examinations for licensure,
20 certification, permit or registration in chs. 440 to 459 shall reasonably
21 relate to the skills likely to be needed for an applicant to practice in this
22 state at the time of examination and shall seek to determine the applicant's
23 preparedness to exercise the skills.

24 (2) The department or examining board having authority to license,
25 certify, register or permit applicants may do any of the following:

26 (a) Prepare, administer and grade examinations.

27 (b) Approve, in whole or in part, an examination prepared, administered
28 and graded by a test service provider.

1 ••87-1137/3••SECTION 2050. 440.10 of the statutes is created to read:

2 440.10 NOTICE OF RENEWAL. The department shall mail a notice of renewal
3 to the last address provided to the department by each license, certificate or
4 permit holder under chs. 440 to 459 at least 30 days prior to the expiration
5 date of the license, certificate or permit. Failure to receive a notice of
6 renewal is not a defense in any disciplinary proceeding against the holder or
7 in any proceeding against the holder for practicing without a license,
8 certificate or permit. Failure to receive a notice of renewal does not
9 relieve the holder from the obligation to pay a penalty for late renewal under
10 s. 440.05 (4) or (5).

11 ••87-1137/3••SECTION 2051. 440.11 of the statutes is created to read:

12 440.11 CHANGE OF NAME OR ADDRESS. (1) An applicant for or recipient of
13 a license, certificate or permit under chs. 440 to 459 who changes his or her
14 name or moves from the last address provided to the department shall notify
15 the department in writing of his or her new name or address within 30 days of
16 the change.

17 (2) The department or any examining board or board may serve any process,
18 notice or demand on the holder of any license, certificate or permit by mail-
19 ing it to the last-known address of the holder as indicated in the records of
20 the department, examining board or board.

21 (3) Any person who fails to comply with sub. (1) shall be subject to a
22 forfeiture of \$50.

23 ••87-1140/4••SECTION 2052. 440.22 of the statutes is created to read:

24 440.22 ASSESSMENT OF COSTS. (1) In this section, "costs of the
25 proceeding" means the compensation and reasonable expenses of hearing exam-
26 iners and of prosecuting attorneys for the department or examining board, a
27 reasonable disbursement for the service of process or other papers, amounts
28 actually paid out for certified copies of records in any public office,

1 postage, telephoning, adverse examinations and depositions and copies, expert
2 witness fees, witness fees and expenses, compensation and reasonable expenses
3 of experts and investigators, and compensation and expenses of a reporter for
4 recording and transcribing testimony.

5 (2) In any disciplinary proceeding against a holder of a license,
6 certificate, permit or registration in which the department or an examining
7 board attached to the department orders suspension, limitation or revocation
8 of the license, certificate, permit or registration or reprimands the holder,
9 the department or examining board may, in addition to this discipline, assess
10 all or part of the costs of the proceeding against the holder. Costs are
11 payable to the department.

12 (3) In addition to any other discipline imposed, if the department or
13 examining board assesses costs of the proceeding to the holder of the license,
14 certificate, permit or registration under sub. (2), the department or exam-
15 ining board may not restore, renew or otherwise issue any license,
16 certificate, permit or registration to the holder until the holder has made
17 payment to the department under sub. (2) in the full amount assessed.

18 ••87-1139/2••SECTION 2053. 441.06 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:
19 441.06 (3) A registered nurse practicing for compensation shall, ~~during~~
20 January on or before March 1 of the even-numbered years submit to the board on
21 furnished blanks a statement giving name, residence and other facts as the
22 board requires, with the renewal fee specified in s. 440.05 (3).

23 ••87-1133/3••SECTION 2054. 441.10 (3) (a) of the statutes is amended to
24 read:

25 441.10 (3) (a) On complying with this chapter relating to applicants for
26 licensure as licensed practical nurses, and passing a ~~satisfactory~~ an
27 examination, the applicant shall receive a license as a licensed practical
28 nurse, signed by the chairperson of the board and countersigned by the secre-

1 tary of the examining council on licensed practical nurses. The holder of the
2 license is a "licensed practical nurse" and may append the letters "L.P.N." to
3 his or her name. The board may reprimand or may limit, suspend or revoke the
4 license of a licensed practical nurse under s. 441.07.

5 ••87-1133/3••SECTION 2055. 443.06 (2) (a), (b) and (e) of the statutes
6 are amended to read:

7 443.06 (2) (a) A record of completion of a course in land surveying of
8 not less than 2 years' duration approved by the section together with 2 years
9 of practice in land surveying work of satisfactory character which indicates
10 that the applicant is competent to be placed in responsible charge of such
11 work, if the applicant has passed ~~a satisfactory~~ an oral and written or writ-
12 ten examination.

13 (b) A record of 6 years of practice in land surveying of satisfactory
14 character, which indicates that the applicant is competent to be placed in
15 responsible charge of such work, if the applicant has passed ~~a satisfactory~~ an
16 oral and written or written examination.

17 (e) A record of satisfactory completion of an apprenticeship training
18 course in land surveying prescribed by the department of industry, labor and
19 human relations, of satisfactory character which indicates that the applicant
20 is competent to be placed in responsible charge of such work, if the applicant
21 has passed ~~a satisfactory~~ an oral and written or written examination.

22 ••87-1137/3••SECTION 2056. 443.08 (3) (b) of the statutes is amended to
23 read:

24 443.08 (3) (b) All certificates of authorization shall expire on January
25 31 of the even-numbered year following their issuance or renewal and shall be
26 invalid after the expiration date unless renewed. ~~The department shall notify~~
27 ~~every corporation certified under this section of the date of the expiration~~

1 ~~of its certificate and the fee required in s. 440.05 (8). The notice shall be~~
2 ~~mailed at least one month in advance of expiration.~~

3 ••87-1137/3••SECTION 2057. 443.10 (5) (a) of the statutes is renumbered
4 443.10 (5).

5 ••87-1137/3••SECTION 2058. 443.10 (5) (b) of the statutes is repealed.

6 ••87-1137/3••SECTION 2059. 445.07 of the statutes is amended to read:

7 445.07 RESTORATION OF LICENSES. A Notwithstanding s. 440.05 (4) or (5),
8 a licensed funeral director who fails to renew a license may on application
9 filed within 4 years after the expiration of the person's last license secure
10 a renewal license without examination by payment of a renewal fee for each
11 biennium not licensed ex. A licensed funeral director who fails to renew a
12 license may on application filed within 4 years after the expiration of the
13 person's last license secure a renewal license by examination and payment of
14 the fee under s. 440.05 (1). Any licensed funeral director whose license has
15 lapsed 4 years or more may obtain a new license by examination and payment of
16 the fee under s. 440.05 (1). The time limitations prescribed in this section
17 shall not include the service period of a funeral director as an active member
18 of the U.S. armed forces.

19 ••87b0433/2••SECTION 2059m. 445.095 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to
20 read:

21 445.095 (1) (b) All apprentices under this chapter shall be paid at least
22 the applicable minimum wage ~~in effect in this state under s. 104.025 (2).~~

23 ••87-1139/2••SECTION 2060. 445.105 (3) of the statutes is amended to
24 read:

25 445.105 (3) Applications for funeral establishment permits shall be made
26 on blanks furnished by the examining board and filed with the examining board
27 on or before ~~July~~ June 1 and shall be accompanied by the fee specified under

1 s. 440.05 (8). All permits shall expire on ~~June 30~~ May 31 of odd-numbered
2 years.

3 ••87-1137/3••SECTION 2061. 445.11 (1) of the statutes is renumbered
4 445.11.

5 ••87-1137/3••SECTION 2062. 445.11 (2) of the statutes is repealed.

6 ••87-1139/2••SECTION 2063. 447.08 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 447.08 (3) The fee specified in s. 440.05 (3) shall be due and payable on
8 or before September ~~±~~ 30 of each odd-numbered year following issuance of the
9 certificate. Any registrant who, subsequent to registering, changes place of
10 residence or employment shall, within 30 days thereafter, notify the examining
11 board in writing of the change and furnish the address of the new residence or
12 employment and, where applicable, the name of the new employer.

13 ••87b0287/2••SECTION 2063m. 448.02 (3) (a) of the statutes is amended to
14 read:

15 448.02 (3) (a) The board shall investigate allegations of unprofessional
16 conduct and negligence in treatment by persons holding a license or certif-
17 icate granted by the board. An allegation that a physician has violated s.
18 448.30 or 450.13 (2) or has failed to mail or present a medical certification
19 required under s. 69.18 (2) within 21 days after the pronouncement of death of
20 the person who is the subject of the required certificate or that a physician
21 has failed at least 6 times within a 6-month period to mail or present a
22 medical certificate required under s. 69.18 (2) within 6 days after the
23 pronouncement of death of the person who is the subject of the required
24 certificate is an allegation of unprofessional conduct. Information contained
25 in reports filed with the board under s. 49.45 (2) (a) ~~12r or 1~~ 50.36 (3) (b),
26 609.17 or 632.715 or under 42 CFR 1001.109 (e) and 42 CFR 1001.124 (a) (3) and
27 (b) shall be investigated by the board. Information contained in a report
28 filed with the board under s. 655.045 (1), as created by 1985 Wisconsin Act

1 29, which is not a finding of negligence or in ~~reports~~ a report filed with the
2 board under s. 50.36 (3) (c), ~~609.17 or 632.715 or under 42 CFR 474.52 (e) (3)~~
3 may, within the discretion of the board, be used as the basis of an investi-
4 gation of the persons named in the reports. The board may require a person
5 holding a license or certificate to undergo and may consider the results of
6 one or more physical, mental or professional competency examinations if the
7 board believes that the results of any such examinations may be useful to the
8 board in conducting its investigation.

9 ••87-1139/2••SECTION 2064. 448.07 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to
10 read:

11 448.07 (1) (a) Every person licensed or certified under this chapter
12 shall register ~~biennially~~ on or before November 1 of each odd-numbered year
13 following issuance of the license or certificate with the board in such manner
14 ~~and at such time~~ as the board shall designate and upon ~~such~~ forms as the board
15 shall provide. The secretary of the board, on or before ~~December~~ October 1 of
16 each odd-numbered year, shall mail or cause to be mailed to every person
17 required to register ~~at that time~~ a registration form. The board shall fur-
18 nish to each person registered under this section a certificate of
19 registration, and ~~each such~~ the person shall display the registration certif-
20 icate conspicuously in the office at all times. No person may exercise the
21 rights or privileges conferred by any license or certificate granted by the
22 board unless currently registered as required under this subsection.

23 ••87-1139/2••SECTION 2065. 457.03 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

24 457.03 (1) No person may operate a school for the purpose of teaching
25 barbering for compensation unless a biennial certificate of registration has
26 been obtained from the examining board. Application for the certificate shall
27 be filed with the examining board in the form the examining board prescribes.
28 The original fee for certificate of registration shall be the fee specified

1 under s. 440.05 (8) and shall be paid before the school is opened. The
2 renewal fee specified in s. 440.05 (8) shall be paid before ~~September~~ June 1
3 in odd-numbered years. Barber schools shall make no charge to patrons for
4 barbering services. Vocational, technical and adult education schools in this
5 state are exempt from paying registration fees.

6 ••87-1139/2••SECTION 2066. 458.02 (7) of the statutes is amended to read:
7 458.02 (7) The initial license fee and the biennial renewal fee for a
8 certificate of registration for a school to teach cosmetology for all schools
9 holding a certificate of registration are specified in s. 440.05 (8). The
10 biennial fee for a certificate of registration shall be paid on or before
11 ~~November 30~~ July 1 in odd-numbered years.

12 ••87-1139/2••SECTION 2067. 458.09 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:
13 458.09 (2) Before any ~~such~~ license is issued under sub. (1) the examining
14 board shall require sworn proof of ownership of the beauty or electrolysis
15 salon business in such form as it may prescribe, and the owner shall pay the
16 required fee. ~~Such~~ The licenses and renewals shall expire on ~~November 30~~ July
17 1 of the odd-numbered years and the licenses ~~shall~~ are not be transferable.
18 Changes of ownership of any beauty or electrolysis salon shall be reported to
19 the examining board by the manager of ~~such~~ the salon within 5 days after ~~such~~
20 the change of ownership.

21 ••87-1139/2••SECTION 2068. 458.11 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:
22 458.11 (2) All licenses shall expire on ~~November 30~~ July 1 of the odd-
23 numbered years. Apprentices' permits shall expire at the end of 3 years from
24 the date of issue.

25 ••87-2452/3••SECTION 2069. 551.22 (18) of the statutes is created to
26 read:

27 551.22 (18) Any shares of common stock issued in an initial public
28 offering by a corporation organized under the laws of any state or foreign

1 government with which the United States currently maintains diploma-
2 tions if all of the following are satisfied:

3 (a) The aggregate value of the common stockholders' equity in the cor-
4 poration is at least \$500,000 at the time of the offering.

5 (b) The offering is made pursuant to a firm commitment underwriting.

6 (c) A final prospectus and \$200 are filed with the commissioner within 10
7 business days after the first sale of the stock in this state.

8 ••87b1503/1 •• 87b1788/en••SECTION 2070r. 560.03 (18) of the statutes is
9 amended to read:

10 560.03 (18) Develop and implement a plan to promote and increase exports,
11 including agricultural products, and foreign investment in this state. The
12 plan shall provide for the secretary to take a leadership role in assuring
13 collaboration and coordination among international trade activities conducted
14 by governmental entities to assure efficiency and to avoid duplication and may
15 include provisions for participation in trade fairs and missions, establish-
16 ment and maintenance of foreign trade offices and preparation of research on
17 foreign markets for exports from this state and on opportunities for foreign
18 investment in this state. The plan shall ~~specify~~ describe the allocation of
19 funds ~~appropriated under 1983 Wisconsin Act 86~~ for support staff in this state
20 to implement the plan and for all other costs in implementing each provision
21 of the plan. In developing and implementing the plan, the department shall
22 consult with the department of agriculture, trade and consumer protection, the
23 university of Wisconsin system, the state vocational, technical and adult
24 education system and other public and private agencies and institutions sup-
25 porting international trade education or activities. Any plan to establish a
26 foreign trade office shall include the feasibility of establishing a system of
27 graduated fees which a trade office may use to offset its operating costs, or
28 a system of commissions for execution of successful transactions, or both.

1 The plan shall be completed no later than January 1, 1988, and shall be
2 reviewed, and revised as necessary, annually thereafter.

3 ••87b0411/3••SECTION 2071m. 560.03 (21) of the statutes is created to
4 read:

5 560.03 (21) Administer the self-employment and placement pilot project
6 under s. 49.50 (7s).

7 ••87-2066/6••SECTION 2072. 560.032 of the statutes is created to read:

8 560.032 COUNCIL ON INTERNATIONAL TRADE. The council on international
9 trade shall advise the secretary on matters related to exporting products of
10 this state and attracting international investments to retain or create jobs
11 in this state.

12 ••87b0911/1 •• 87b1226/2••SECTION 2072ad. 560.034 (2) of the statutes is
13 amended to read:

14 560.034 (2) If the department receives a notice under s. 66.521 (4m) (a),
15 the department shall determine whether the information in that notice is
16 accurate and shall estimate, no later than 20 days after receipt of the
17 notice, whether the project which is the subject of the notice is expected to
18 eliminate, create or maintain jobs on the project site and elsewhere in this
19 state and the net number of jobs expected to be eliminated, created or main-
20 tained as a result of the project.

21 ••87b0911/1 •• 87b1226/2••SECTION 2072am. 560.034 (3) of the statutes is
22 amended to read:

23 560.034 (3) If the department receives a notice under s. 234.65 (3) (a)
24 1, the department shall determine whether the information in that notice is
25 accurate and shall estimate, no later than 20 days after receipt of the
26 notice, whether the project which is the subject of the notice is expected to
27 eliminate, create or maintain jobs on the project site and elsewhere in this

1 state and the net number of jobs expected to be eliminated, created or main-
2 tained as a result of the project.

3 ••87b0248/2••SECTION 2072b. 560.036 (1) (e) 2 of the statutes is
4 repealed.

5 ••87b0248/2••SECTION 2072c. 560.036 (1) (em) of the statutes is repealed.

6 ••87b0474/2••SECTION 2072cm. 560.036 (1) (ep) of the statutes is created
7 to read:

8 560.036 (1) (ep) "Minority financial adviser" means a sole
9 proprietorship, partnership, joint venture or corporation that fulfills all of
10 the following requirements:

11 1. It is at least 51% owned, controlled and actively managed by a minority
12 group member or members who are U.S. citizens or persons lawfully admitted to
13 the United States for permanent residence, as defined under 8 USC 1101 (a)
14 (20).

15 2. It serves as an adviser with regard to the sale of evidences of
16 indebtedness or other obligations.

17 ••87b0474/2••SECTION 2072cr. 560.036 (1) (fm) of the statutes is created
18 to read:

19 560.036 (1) (fm) "Minority investment firm" means a sole proprietorship,
20 partnership, joint venture or corporation that fulfills all of the following
21 requirements:

22 1. It is at least 51% owned, controlled and actively managed by a minor-
23 ity group member or members who are U.S. citizens or persons lawfully admitted
24 to the United States for permanent residence, as defined under 8 USC 1101 (a)
25 (20).

26 2. It serves as a manager, comanager or in any other underwriting capac-
27 ity with regard to the sale of evidences of indebtedness or other obligations
28 or as a broker-dealer as defined in s. 551.02 (3).

1 ••87b0474/2••SECTION 2072ct. 560.036 (2) (title) and (a) of the statutes
2 are amended to read:

3 560.036 (2) (title) MINORITY BUSINESS, ADVISER AND FIRM CERTIFICATION.
4 (a) For the purposes of ss. 16.75 (3m), 16.855 (10m) ~~and~~, 16.87 (2) 18.16,
5 18.64, 18.77, 25.185, 231.27 and 234.85, the department shall establish and
6 periodically update a list of certified minority businesses, minority finan-
7 cial advisers and minority investment firms. Any business, financial adviser
8 or investment firm may apply to the department for certification. For pur-
9 poses of this paragraph, unless the context otherwise requires, a "business"
10 includes a financial adviser or investment firm.

11 ••87b0248/2••SECTION 2072e. 560.036 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to
12 read:

13 560.036 (2) (b) The department shall certify a business incorporated
14 under ch. 180 or having its principal place of business in this state if the
15 department, after conducting an investigation, determines that the business
16 qualifies as a minority business under sub. (1) and any rules promulgated
17 under sub. (3) (c). A determination that a business qualifies as a minority
18 business may not be based on the number of minority group members employed by
19 the business. ~~This paragraph does not apply after June 30, 1987.~~

20 ••87b0248/2••SECTION 2072f. 560.036 (2) (bm) of the statutes is repealed.

21 ••87b0248/2••SECTION 2072h. 560.036 (2) (c) of the statutes is amended to
22 read:

23 560.036 (2) (c) The department, without investigation, may certify a
24 business incorporated in this state or having its principal place of business
25 in this state if the business is certified or otherwise classified as a
26 minority business by an agency of this or another state or the federal
27 government, or by a private business with expertise in certifying minority
28 businesses if the private business uses substantially the same procedures as